

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 22-52.1 OF THE LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT CODE OF ORDINANCES, RELATED TO CONSTABLES, ESTABLISHING THE AMOUNT OF THE BOND TO BE PROVIDED BY CONSTABLES AND DEPUTY CONSTABLES; PROVIDING THAT CONSTABLES MAY NOT APPOINT DEPUTY CONSTABLES UNLESS AUTHORIZED TO DO SO BY THE MAYOR AND SUBJECT TO ANY STANDARDS ESTABLISHED BY THE MAYOR; REQUIRING THE TIMELY FILING OF THE MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT REQUIRED BY KRS 70.430; PROHIBITING CONSTABLES AND DEPUTY CONSTABLES FROM EQUIPPING VEHICLES WITH CERTAIN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT AND ESTABLISHING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATION; AND AMENDING SECTION 22-55.1 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, RELATED TO LOCAL CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICERS, TO INCREASE THE AMOUNT OF THE BOND THAT MUST BE PROVIDED BY A CONSTABLE TO \$25,000; ALL EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2023.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT:

Section 1 – That section 22-52.1 of the Code of Ordinances, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government, is hereby amended and reenacted, so that when amended and reenacted the same shall read as follows:

Sec. 22-52.1. - Constables.

- (a) The constables shall be elected.
- (b) The total personal compensation a constable may receive per annum from both salary and fees ~~[shall be equal to]~~ may not exceed the amount annually stipulated by the state department of local government pursuant to KRS 64.527. The constables shall not receive any of the benefits provided for in chapter 21 or a salary.
- (c) Each constable and deputy constable shall execute a bond, to be renewed biennially, in the amount of twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000.00) and ten thousand dollars (\$10,000.00), respectively. The bond shall be executed and recorded in accordance with Section 22-55.1 of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Code of Ordinances and KRS 70.310.
- (d) Constables do not have authority to appoint deputy constables in Fayette County unless approved by, and subject to any standards established by, the Mayor of the Urban County Government in accordance with KRS 70.320. Deputy constables may be appointed to a term concurrent with that of the constable, or for a term otherwise established by the Mayor of the Urban County Government, in accordance with the provisions and subject to the qualifications set forth in KRS 70.320(2) through KRS 70.320(4). Deputy constables may also be removed from office by the Mayor in accordance with the provisions of KRS 70.320(2). The appointment of any deputy constable terminates at the end of the term of appointment unless renewed by the Mayor.
- (e) By the tenth day of each calendar month, each constable shall present to the Fayette County Clerk a report, in the standard form approved by the Clerk, concerning performance of the duties of the office of constable, by the constable and deputy constables, required by KRS 70.430. Each constable shall provide a copy of the report to the Urban County Government Department of Public Safety.
- (f) Emergency Vehicle Equipment.

- (i) Constables and deputy constables shall not equip with or use upon their vehicles any siren, whistle, or bell; or any flashing, revolving, or oscillating light of any color, except for such purposes expressly authorized by law and to the extent expressly authorized by law, with the concurrence of the urban county government. In accordance with KRS 189.950, the Urban County Council hereby determines, as a matter of public safety, that constables and deputy constables shall not equip their vehicles with emergency equipment contemplated under KRS 189.910 to KRS 189.950, and hereby revokes the authorization for same provided in KRS 189.950. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as the granting of permission or acquiescence by the urban county government for the use of any siren, whistle, bell, or a flashing, revolving or oscillating light of any color by a constable or deputy constable for public law enforcement related activities, including causing motorists to stop or yield the right-of-way.
- (ii) Any constable or deputy constable who violates subsection (f)(i) above shall be subject to the penalties provided in KRS 189.993.

Section 2 – That section 22-55.1 of the Code of Ordinances, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government, is hereby amended and reenacted, so that when amended and reenacted the same shall read as follows:

Sec. 22-55.1. - Local constitutional officers.

- (a) Every local constitutional officer listed below shall execute a bond for the faithful performance of the duties of his office in the amount specified below:
 - County judge/executive.....\$10,000
 - County clerk.....400,000
 - Sheriff (KRS 70.020).....1,000,000
 - Sheriff (KRS 134.250).....5,000,000
 - County surveyor.....10,000
 - Coroner.....10,000
 - Deputy coroners.....10,000
 - Constables.....[10]25,000
- (b) ~~[Each local constitutional officer listed in subsection (a) of this section who is in office on January 1, 1998, shall have presented his bond with sureties to the department of law for approval by the urban county council prior to that date.]~~ Each ~~[person elected to a local constitutional office]~~ elected officer listed in subsection (a) of this section ~~[after that date]~~ shall present ~~[his]~~ a bond with sureties to the department of law for approval by the urban county council before the day the term of office to which ~~[he]~~ the officer has been elected begins. Each ~~[person appointed to a local constitutional office]~~ appointed officer listed in subsection (a) of this section ~~[after that date]~~ shall present ~~[his]~~ a bond with sureties to the department of law for approval by the urban county council within thirty (30) days after ~~[he receives]~~ receiving notice of ~~[his]~~ appointment.
- (c) Whenever the urban county council approves a bond with sureties pursuant to this section, the clerk of the urban county

council shall record the approval of the bonds and sureties in the council's minutes.

- (d) The department of law shall record bonds approved pursuant to this section in the Fayette County [e] Clerk's records.
- (e) The department of law shall reimburse the premiums on the bonds of the local constitutional officers approved pursuant to this section from urban county government funds appropriated by the urban county council for that purpose, if a claim is made with a supporting affidavit by a local constitutional officer. However, pursuant to KRS 62.155, the premium on the sheriffs KRS 70.020 bond shall be paid or reimbursed by the Commonwealth of Kentucky and not by the department of law.
- (f) The KRS 70.020 bond of the sheriff shall be renewed annually and the KRS 70.310 bond of each constable shall be renewed biennially. All other bonds of the local constitutional officers listed in subsection (a) of this section shall be renewed for the term of any person elected or appointed to that office. However, the urban county council may at any time authorized by law require additional sureties of any local constitutional officers listed in subsection (a) of this section.

Section 3 - That this Ordinance shall become effective on January 1, 2023.

PASSED URBAN COUNTY COUNCIL:

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CLERK OF URBAN COUNTY COUNCIL

Published:

MKH:X:\Cases\CO\16-CC0461\LEG\00770112.DOCX